ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 31, 2014
2:30 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Wes Kel ler, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Neal Foster
Representative Charisse MIlett

COW TTEE CALENDAR

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO. 110(JUD)

“"An Act relating to the authority of the victinms' advocate to
request a hearing for the release to a crine victim under
certain conditions of certain property in the custody of a |aw
enf or cenent agency."

- MOVED QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 186

"An Act relating to the Controlled Substances Advisory Conmttee
and providing for mandatory neetings of the conmmttee at | east
twce a year."

- MOVED QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 110

SHORT TI TLE. RETURN OF SEI ZED PROPERTY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DYSON

01/ 22/ 14 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 10/ 14

01/ 22/ 14 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 22/ 14 (S) JUD

02/ 19/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 19/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 31, 2014



02/ 19/ 14

M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 21/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 21/ 14 (S) Moved CSSB 110(JUD) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 21/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 24/ 14 (S) JUD RPT CS 2DP INR SAME TITLE
02/ 24/ 14 (S) DP: COGHI LL, DYSON

02/ 24/ 14 (S) NR. OLSON

03/ 10/ 14 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 10/ 14 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSB 110( JUD)

03/ 12/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 12/ 14 (H JUD

03/ 31/ 14 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: SB 186
SHORT TI TLE. CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ADVI SORY COWM TTEE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DYSON

02/ 21/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 21/ 14 (S) JUD

03/ 12/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

03/ 12/ 14 (S) Moved SB 186 Qut of Conmittee

03/ 12/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 14/ 14 (S) JUD RPT 4DP 1NR

03/ 14/ 14 (S) DP:  COGHILL, WELECHOMSKI, MOGUI RE,
DYSON

03/ 14/ 14 (S) NR: OLSON

03/ 21/ 14 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 21/ 14 (S) VERS| O\:  SB 186

03/ 24/ 14 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 24/ 14 (H) JUD

03/ 31/ 14 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR FRED DYSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 110 as sponsor.

CHARLES KOPP, St aff

Senator Fred Dyson

Al aska State Legislature

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 110 on behal f of Senator Dyson.

NANCY MEADE, General Counse
Al aska Court System
Department of Adm nistration

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 31, 2014



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 110.

SENATOR FRED DYSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 186 as sponsor.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Legal Services Section

Crimnal Division

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 186.

CHARLES KOPP, Staff

Senat or Fred Dyson

Al aska State Legislature

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regardi ng SB 186.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

2: 30: 59 PM

VICE CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 2:30 p.m Representatives LeDoux,
Pruitt, Guenberg, and Lynn were present at the call to order.

Chair Keller arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

SB 110- RETURN OF SEI ZED PROPERTY

VI CE CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business would
be CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 110(JUD), "An Act relating to the
authority of the victins' advocate to request a hearing for the
release to a crinme victim under certain conditions of certain
property in the custody of a | aw enforcenent agency."

2:31: 49 PM

SENATOR FRED DYSON, Alaska State Legislature, said SB 110
probably |ooks famliar. A bill went through last year to
facilitate the process of returning property to victinms, and he
feels that it should never have needed to be done. Authorities
ought to be giving innocent people back their property as soon
as possi ble, he opined. He said that last year's bill provided
a process for a wvictim to get property back after the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 31, 2014



authorities had conpleted a chain of custody, but people have
told him that the process was not working well wth sone
authorities. He noted that SB 110 is a nodification that gives
the victim advocate the authority to go and get the property
back. The bill gives an agency or a person who has the victinms
interest at heart the authority to pursue those interests and
get the property returned, he explai ned.

2:33: 55 PM

CHARLES KOPP, Staff, Senator Fred Dyson, stated that in 2012 the
| egi sl ature passed SB 30, which established a process in Title
12 of the Al aska Code of Crimnal Procedure for property crine
victinms to petition the court for relief in recovering their

property that was held as evidence. This was brought to the
attention of the bill's sponsor by nunmerous businesses—
particularly small busi nesses—and individuals who had had

property seized and had no recourse other than suing the state
to get their property back. He said SB 30 put a process in
place for the crime victimto petition a |aw enforcenment agency
through a victims advocate to have the property returned. The
petition went through the victinms advocate because advocates
are very famliar with the Code of Crimnal Procedure and
Chapter 36 of Title 12, which deals with the disposition of
recovered and sei zed property.

2:35:53 PM

MR. KOPP said the victinms' advocate would review the |aws of
evidence and see if the victim was eligible to take back
property. Once the advocate petitioned the |aw enforcenent
agency, the agency would have 10 days to either return the
property or to request a hearing before the court to determ ne
if the property should be released to the crinme victim "W\
t hought that was all going well,” he said, but there was a
m sunder st andi ng. The Departnent of Law requested clarification
whether it was the |aw enforcenent agency that was supposed to
be asking the court for the hearing, rather than the victins'
advocate, he stated. After the clarification request cane from
M. [Ri chard] Svobodny [Deputy Attorney General, Departnent of
Law] in March 2013, the court system researched the testinony
and said that there was no question that the |aw enforcenent
agency was the entity to request the hearing for the return of
property. The victinms' advocate requested that he or she be
given the authority to request the hearing in addition to the
| aw enf orcenent agency, which would enpower the crine victim he
expl ai ned.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 31, 2014



2:38:18 PM

MR. KOPP said that SB 110 inproves the standing of the crine
victim by allowing the victins' advocate to directly appeal to
the court for the hearing if the | aw enforcenent agency does not
do it within the deadline prescribed under existing |aw The
bill is very brief, he noted. Section 1 just adds a new
subsection (f) to return the property by hearing and to provide
that the Ofice of Victins' R ghts may request a hearing before
the court if the |law enforcenent agency fails to act within ten
days after receiving the request. Section 2 just anmends Title
24, which is the victins' advocate authorizing | anguage.

VI CE CHAIR Lynn passed the gavel to Chair Keller.
2:41: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said SB 110's purpose is to give the
victinms' advocate standing to file a notion with the court for a
hearing to get the victims property back. He asked if the
sponsor would have any problem with allowing the victins,
t hensel ves, to file that notion. He said he could see a
situation where there is an acrinonious divorce and sone
property is renoved and found, and there would not be a reason
for an advocate to file.

2:42: 45 PM

MR. KOPP said the bill anends Title 12, which is the Code of
Crimnal Procedure and would not pertain to a divorce court
property hearing. It specifically pertains to crime victinms, he
added. The reason why the request is to go through the Ofice
of Victine' Rights is because the victim advocate is trained in
the law to know all of the procedures and different rules that
cone into play depending on the crine. Additionally, it could
open a floodgate for individuals to meke requests wthout
knowi ng the |egal process, he said. "It kind of acts as a
gat ekeeper, " he sai d.

2:46: 10 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX expressed doubt that the effect would be
to open up the floodgates, and she noted that at times there is

both a crimnal prosecution and a civil suit. It would nake a
lot of sense to also allow a victims counsel to ask for a

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 31, 2014



hearing, she stated, and the counsel would be as know edgeabl e
as the victins' advocate.

MR. KOPP said that the counsel to parties can always ask the
court outside of this law, and SB 110 allows an unrepresented
crime victim working through the Ofice of Victins' Rights, to
request the court for a hearing. The judge can neke the
determnation if the victimhas nore of a right to the property
than there is a need for the state, the defense, or another
third party to keep hold of it. The issue mght be better
understood by | ooking at the context of the entire AS 12.36.070,
Return of Property by Hearing, which already has a process in

pl ace, he said. "Your question is already envisioned in the
entirety of the law," he stated. A civil suit will conme under
civil law, he explained. There is nothing to prevent counsel

from asking the court for a return of property. Under SB 110
if no crimnal case is pending regarding the property, the
hearing shall be before a district or superior court where the

property is |ocated. If it is a crimnal case, it wll be the
court of jurisdiction, he explained. At the hearing, the party
that is objecting to the return of the property will state the

reason on the record. He said the court may order the return of
the property if the crime victim by the preponderance of the
evi dence, provides satisfactory proof of ownership and the party
that objects fails to prove, by a preponderance of the evidence,
that the property nmust be retained for evidentiary purposes.

2:51:17 PM

MR, KOPP said that if the court orders the return of the
property to the crime victim the court may inpose reasonable
conditions on the return, such as requiring that the wvictim
retain the property to be available for future court hearings or
requiring phot ographs of the property.

2:52: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she is really confused, and perhaps
sonmeone from the Departnent of Law or the court system can hel p.
She said she is nmuddling through the civil rules. In a civi
case, Rule 24, persons claimng the right to property can
intervene, "but, as far as | know, just because sonebody has an
attorney in a civil suit, that doesn't allow that attorney to
intervene, as the law stands now, in the crimnal action, and it
woul d be the crimnal action that we're tal king about here.”

2:53: 13 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 31, 2014



SENATOR DYSON said this nostly has to do wth evidentiary
property. \What has happened is that there would be a suspected
crinme with property seized and held for evidence, "and nonths
and years will go by and it doesn't get returned,” he stated

It has always been in the statutes that as soon as property has
been analyzed and evidence has been gathered, it should be
returned to the rightful owner. He said that the prosecutor has
often said, "No, we mght need it." O there nmay be appeals, so
the property sits in an evidence |ocker or yard. Renedy al ways
was for the victim of a crime to go get counsel and go into
court to try to get property back. He said he has about six
cases where that has not worked, and that is why he came up with
a process in 2012. It has been working, "but they've cone back
to us and said please clarify this bill, and | could spend the
afternoon telling you horror stories, but that's what it's
about . "

2:54: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she has experienced this and thinks
it is a great idea. She suggested that sone people may choose
not to use a victins' advocate and would rather call their
counsel to intervene to get property back.

2:55: 39 PM
SENATOR DYSON said, "That's always been true, it's still true
and it still hasn't worked."

MR. KOPP said the option that Representative LeDoux is referring
to has always been in the law, and it has been ineffective.
This gives soneone who does not have counsel that opportunity as
wel |, he added.

NANCY MEADE, Ceneral Counsel, Al aska Court System Departnent of
Adm nistration, said there is no way to intervene in a crimna
case; crimnal cases are a state prosecuting authority against a
def endant . Cvil cases have a neans for intervening, and the
court weighs whether the non-party has an interest in the suit.
She surmsed that what the sponsor was speaking of is an
i nstance where a | aw enforcenent agency is holding property, and
a victim who has an attorney (for other purposes or for this
purpose) would file a case that is not an intervention in that
crimnal case, but the victim has standing to say that the
troopers are keeping his or her car that was stolen. It would
be a separate action, she explai ned.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 31, 2014



2:57:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX surm sed that wthout SB 110, a person
with an attorney has to file a separate case, and SB 110 wi |l
allow the victins' advocate to intervene in the crimnal case
"My concern is nmaybe we should also let the |awer for the other
side, as well as the victins' rights advocate, whoever the
victim chooses to have represent them be able to intervene in
this crimnal case.”

2:58: 09 PM

M5. MEADE pointed out that the standing that is granted to the
victinms' advocate under Section 1 of the bill is very limted
It is just to ask for the hearing and to advocate for the return
of the property—the advocate is not granted intervener status.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that "this tail could wag the dog"
in sone cases. There could be a very valuable jewel and a | ot
of noney invol ved. He further opined that there are many good
judges in Alaska, and a judge should be qualified to decide
whether to allow an unrepresented person in a given case to
[file] or to direct the person to the Ofice of Victins' R ghts.
If a person has an attorney, that attorney nmay have nore tine
and nore famliarity than the victinms' rights |awer, he said.
"I don't see any down side in giving the judge the opportunity
to entertain a notion," he stated. If it were considered to be
an intervention notion, it would be for a limted tine and a
[imted purpose sinply for the release of the property. He gave
the scenario of a stolen good being clained by two people in a
di vorce situation

3: 00: 55 PM

M5. MEADE said she wuld have to think a Ilittle about
Representative Guenberg's coments. She noted that the
Department of Law would have a view on whether there should be
others who are allowed to intervene even for a limted purpose
in a crimnal case because of tine franes and confidentiality
i ssues. She said the sponsor's goal is limted just to victins,
and the Ofice of Victins' Rights has not said that there is not
time to handl e the work.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referenced a neno to M. Meade from
Adam Kel | er about the neaning of "agency" as it appears in the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 31, 2014



bill. He asked if there should be an anmendnent to the
definitional statute.

3:03:01 PM

M5. MEADE said that the neno was prepared by her request
regarding SB 110 to clear up confusion from SB 30 in 2012 as to
whi ch agency could ask for the hearing. She said she did not
think that the definition of the word, agency, was unclear, it
was just which agency the legislation referred to [which was the
| aw enforcenment agency]. It is now Senator Dyson's intent to
let the Ofice of Victine' R ghts also have the standing to
request the hearing.

CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony.
The comm ttee took an at-ease from 3:04:32 PMto 3:06:44 PM
3:06: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she is not offering an anmendnent
because it is a good bill, and it was late in the session.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to report CSSB 110(JUD) out of
conmttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSSB 110(JUD) was
reported fromthe House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

3:07:14 PM

The comm ttee took an at-ease from3:07:14 PMto 3:08:17 PM
3:08:17 PM

SB 186- CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ADVI SORY COWM TTEE

CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business would be
SENATE BILL NO 186, "An Act relating to the Controlled
Substances Advisory Conmmttee and providing for nmandatory
neetings of the conmttee at |east twice a year."

SENATOR FRED DYSON, Al aska State Legislature, said that SB 186
is small but it is not sinple. "In 1982, one of the |ast things
that Governor [Jay] Hammond did—-and this was originally the
whol e section of the code on controlled substance, scheduled
substances, was a part of the CGovernor's package." He said it
originated in the House and sets up "that whole section.” The

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 31, 2014



first part sets up a Controlled Substance Advisory Conmmttee, he
said, and it is extraordinary how wisely it was done. "[ The
section] had the right people with the right kind of know edge
and experience, and challenges them to watch over how we handl e
controll ed substances,” he stated. He spoke of [the conmittee
menbers] having knowl edge of the effects of the substances,
effectiveness of treatnents, econoni cs, appropri ateness  of
sentences, and diversionary ways of handling people with drug
pr obl ens.

3:09:32 PM

SENATOR DYSON said, "It commands that they neet twice a year."
The bill passed with a $170,000 fiscal note, which the
| egi sl ature approved, "and nothing happened.” Governor Hamond

returned to Lake Clark and Bella went back to set-netting at
Naknek Point, and nothing happened, he reiterated. He said his
office is working on sone sentencing and crimnal justice issues
as well as the conplex restorative justice issue. He stated
that he has had sone experience and a lot of frustration wth
adm nistrations not following clear legislative intent or the
st at ut e. Everyone was ignorant of what was done in 1982, he
opi ned. In the fall of 2013, an attorney saw SB 56, which is
now in House Finance, and represented in court that if this
comm ssion had been put in place and had been followed, her
client would not be facing a draconian sentence that he was
getting. The attorney requested that the whole section of the
|aw be thrown out, but that was unacceptable to the Departnent
of Law, he noted. The Assistant Attorney General actually
argued in court that the admnistration did not need to pay
attention to what the legislature put in code, because if it
meant it, there would have been a penalty for nonconpliance.

3:11: 53 PM

SENATOR DYSON said it is wunacceptable that for 32 years
successive admnistrations have failed to do this very
reasonable thing of evaluating our war on drugs and treatnent
prograns. He noted his very good efforts at getting things into

I aw, but nothing happened in the way he anticipated. "So what
you have on this page ... this is what our [legislative
attorney] tells us is the necessary words to nake sure that it
is clear in the statute that we nean what we say." He told the
committee to "watch these things," and make sure that the
intention of the legislature is followed. If the |anguage he

proposes does not nake that happen, he has sonme draft | anguage

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 31, 2014



that says, "Failure of conpliance will nean class C felony and
these four PCNs [position control numbers] go away."

SENATOR DYSON said all he is asking is to change a couple of
words so that it becones clearer that what the |egislature said
in 1982 is foll owed.

3:13:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said if the adm nistration has argued that
it does not have to follow the law unless there is a penalty,
why is there no penalty?

SENATOR DYSON answered that the current adm nistration did not
know that "this stuff was in the law," and it is supportive of
the 1egislation. He did not put in a penalty because he has
been told that his wording will work, but the Departnent of Law
and the Attorney Ceneral "were really between a rock and hard
pl ace. " They had to generate a defense of why the entire
section of the code should not be thrown out, so he does not

believe that it is the position of this admnistration that "we
need to nmake it nore draconian, but | amasking you ... to watch
this stuff.”

3:15: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said the |egislature does not always nake
the laws for the good people; sonetinmes |aws are nade because

there are sone people who do not |listen unless there is a
penal ty. She noted that other admnistrations apparently have
not conplied because there was no penalty. "To nme, the old

| anguage | ooks pretty nuch Iike the new | anguage,” so she is not
sure what the bill acconplishes.

CHAIR KELLER said the committee will take an at-ease so that
Representative LeDoux can talk to the sponsor. He stated that
getting the discussion on the record will have a big inpact, and
"it's part of our job to keep track of this stuff, and sonetines
we fail."

3:16: 28 PM

SENATOR DYSON said that the Departnent of Law is supportive, and
Anne Carpeneti can explain what went on in that court case.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Legal Services
Section, Crimnal Division, Departnment of Law (DOL), stated that

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 31, 2014



there is not nmuch difference between the old |anguage and the
new | anguage in SB 186, but the language in the anendnent is
nore demandi ng than current |aw Senator Dyson is correct; the
Departnment of Law was not aware of this [Controlled Substances
Advi sory Conmittee], and there are probably others that DOL is
unawar e of. She said she is sure that the commttee has not
been funded since the law was originally passed. She expl ai ned
that the reason the state took the position that it did in the
aforenentioned litigation was that the plaintiffs were trying to
get the statutes set aside and not followed. The | egislature
had adopted these |laws, so the state's position was that the |aw
could not be set aside just because the [commttee] had not been
f or med.

3:19: 02 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what happened to the $170, 000.

M5. CARPENETI said she believes that nonies not expended are
returned to the general fund.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the comm ssion is within DOL.

CHARLES KOPP, Staff, Senator Fred Dyson, said the Controlled
Subst ances Advisory Committee is within the Departnment of Law,
and the Attorney Ceneral is the chair.

3:20: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked why the committee has not been
meet i ng.

CHAI R KELLER said the DOL did not know it existed.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if the conmittee will now neet.
|f the comm ssion is not beneficial, "maybe we don't need it."

M5. CARPENETI said that she believes that a periodic review of
Al aska laws is a good thing.

3:22:21 PM

SENATOR DYSON said that is an inadequate answer. The | aw
requires the commttee to neet twice a year and it is rigorously
required to do analysis and report to the governor. "And it
says the governor shall initiate legislation to deal wth
i nadequate sentencing, changes in the drugs that are comng

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 31, 2014



after us, evaluating diversion prograns, i.e. therapeutic
courts, and so on and so forth, and treatnent prograns.” He
said he is really glad that this admnistration has been quite
positive about getting after this, but he does not want anyone
going out of this nmeeting thinking that he is calling for a nice
group of people to get together every once in a while and work
on this. "I want the rigorous process that Governor Hammond and
his team laid out then," he stated. That includes form
nmeetings, reports, and recommendations to the governor.

CHAIR KELLER said he is grateful that this has been brought
forward. It has affected people's lives because it has not been

in place. He added that he is grateful to the DOL for picking
up the baton and meking it happen from here on out.

3:24:12 PM

CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report SB 186 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
Hearing no objection, SB 186 was reported from the House
Judi ci ary Standing Conmitt ee.

CHAI R KELLER noted that anmendnents to the crine bill are due by
2:00 PM tonorrow.

3:26: 01 PM
ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judi ciary Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 3:26 P. M

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 31, 2014



